Oracle on Linux Installation Guide

Version 01 For Oracle 12c

January 2018



Authored by Andrew Wolfe and Warren Mansur. Contributions were made by Robert Schudy, Adam Arakelian, Dhananjay Kulkarni, Jack Polnar, Beth Haines, and Pamela Farr.

Copyright 2018 Boston University. All Rights Reserved.

Table of Contents

Introduction	3
Oracle Overview	3
Obtaining a Suitable Linux Distribution	5
Step 1: Evaluating your Linux Distribution	5
Step 2: Installing CentOS	5
Downloading and Installing Oracle	10
Step 1: Creating an OTN Account	10
Step 2: Downloading Oracle	14
Step 3: Installing Oracle	15
Installing the Oracle SQL Developer Client	18
Step 1: Downloading Oracle SQL Developer	18
Step 2: Launching Oracle SQL Developer	20
Step 3: Connecting to Your Database	20
Creating a Database User to Complete Your Assignments	24
Step 1: Creating Your Own User	24
Step 2: Connecting with Your New User	26
Appendix A: I Forgot My Password	29

Introduction

These Oracle installation instructions are used by students enrolled in the Master of Science in Computer Information Systems and other Computer Science Department programs in both on-campus and online programs, who are interested in installing Oracle on Linux. The document begins with a discussion of Oracle, connecting to the Oracle web site, creating an Oracle Technology Network (OTN) account, then downloading and installing Oracle, then setting up a client to connect to your database. If you would like to install Oracle on Windows or Mac (OS X), please read the installation guides for those platforms instead.

These setup instructions are for Oracle 12c. Oracle has maintained upward compatibility for SQL between Oracle versions for many years, so if you cannot install Oracle 12c on your own machine, and you have ready access to installation for an older version of Oracle, you may be able to use it. Oracle is continually updating Oracle.com, so the screens that you see on Oracle.com will probably be a little different than what is shown in this document. If you can't determine how to proceed because what you see is too different, or if something goes wrong ask your facilitator or instructor for help. Good luck, and have fun!

Oracle Overview

About Oracle Oracle has most of the advanced features in any relational or object-relational database management system. Because of this, many of the new ANSI/ISO SQL standards are based on Oracle, so when you learn Oracle you are mainly close to the portable standards. Oracle runs on all common platforms from huge symmetric multiprocessors to ordinary PCs. Oracle is scalable, and supports both clustering and grid computing to surpass the performance and reliability of any single platform. Oracle is broadly considered as the standard by which other database management systems are measured, and when you learn to use Oracle your skills will transition well to other database management systems.

Oracle runs on ordinary machines. Oracle runs on the largest multiprocessors, but Oracle also runs very well on ordinary PCs. PCs are a common Oracle hardware platform, and there are Oracle versions for many PC operating systems, including the Windows family and Linux.

The following instructions are for the default configuration. Oracle is very flexible and can be configured to use less or more in the way of machine resources.

HardwareThe Oracle12c database requires about 13 GB of working disk space for a successful
installation on Linux. In addition, it requires 6+ GB of Linux swap space, depending on
the physical memory available. The installation media downloads in 3 GB, and
decompresses to about 4 GB, so you are likely to need this additional space as well.

We suggest the following allocations:

- 30 GB disk space, plus additional space if you anticipate handling large datasets.
- 2 or more CPUs (cores).
- 5 GB physical memory.

Oracle Oracle 12c can be installed in one of four editions -- Enterprise, Standard Edition, Editions Oracle 12c can be installed in one of four editions -- Enterprise, Standard Edition, Standard Edition One, and Express Edition. All editions come with the core relational DBMS along with full SQL support. The main difference in functionality between the editions is how many advanced features are supported, including features pertaining to high availability, scalability, performance, manageability, security, data warehousing, and business intelligence.

Platform Oracle runs on most common operating systems and platforms, including the Windows family, and several Linux and Unix variants. Oracle supports the features that we use in our courses on all operating systems and platforms, and it doesn't matter what platform your Oracle runs on. Oracle behaves mostly the same regardless of the platform except for database size limitations and performance. Your exercises will behave the same way across all Oracle platforms.

Preparations
and SetupYou can obtain a copy of Oracle by downloading Oracle database software directly from
Oracle. If you experience downloading difficulties, please contact your facilitator, lead
facilitator, or course instructor. Most people with broadband should be able to complete
the download and install the program with minimal difficulty.

Setting up Oracle is not like setting up an ordinary application. Oracle and other DBMS are more deeply integrated with the operating system than ordinary applications. Oracle installs do many more things than application installs. The installer will check for the various configuration problems that can occur on a Linux system. The installer will provide commands for altering your Linux installation to support Oracle. Things can go wrong, particularly with modifying the Linux operating system environments, but in practice this is unusual. Be alert for the unexpected, and don't feel embarrassed if something unexpected happens. Unexpected events are common for database installations. Just contact your instructor of facilitator, who will help you.

Obtaining a Suitable Linux Distribution

Step 1: Evaluating your Linux Distribution

Oracle There are a large number of distributions of Linux, each with their own strengths, support, and followers. However, Oracle does not directly support all Linux distributions, but supports CentOS, "Oracle Linux," other Linux distributions based on Fedora/Red Hat. It also supports SUSE and NeoKylin. The first step is to determine if Oracle supports your particular Linux distribution. If it does not, you will want to install one that does support Oracle. There are instructions for doing so in the next step.

Step 2: Installing CentOS

CentOS Introduction	In this installation guide, Oracle is installed on CentOS 7. You may choose another suitable distribution if you'd like, though the screenshots and
	installation steps may vary.

DownloadingThe full DVD for CentOS 7 is used, but the source code option was notCentOSused. Download as indicated in the screenshot below.



ConfigurationMany steps are automatic, but you need to ensure you take two steps:
enabling the network, and configuring the disk. You will initially see a
screen as follows with these options:



Configuring On the installation destination screen, make sure to select "I will configure partitioning".

	testinstall [Running]
INSTALLATION DESTINATION	
Device Selection Select the device(s) you'd like to install to. They will be left u Local Standard Disks	intouched until you click on the main menu's "Begin Installation" button.
27.26 GIB ATA VBOX HARDDISK sda / 992.5 KiB free	
Specialized & Network Disks	Disks left unselected here will not be touched.
Other Storage Options Partitioning Automatically configure partitioning. I would like to make additional space available. Encryption Encrypt my data. You'll set a passphrase next.	Disks left unselected here will not be touched. 9.
Full disk summary and boot loader	1 disk selected; 27.26 GiB copacity; 992.5 KiB free <u>Refresh</u> 🗿 🛞 🐙 🐙 🖉 🔲 🖉 💷 🖉 🕕 Left 🕱

When you click "Done," it will take you to a custom partitioning page.

Click 'automatic partitioning,' then click on the main partition labeled "/" and resize it down to allow 6 GB of space on the swap partition. Then resize the swap partition to 6GB or more. At the end, it should look something like this.

• •	testir	nstall [Running]	
			CENTOS 7 INSTALLAT
 New CentOS 7 Installation 		centos-swap	
SYSTEM /boot sda2	1024 MiB	Mount Point:	Device(s):
/ centos00-root	14 GiB	Desired Capacity: 6396 MiB	ATA VBOX HARDDISK (sda)
swap centos00-swap	6148 MiB		
✓ CentOS Linux Linux 7.4.1708 for x86_64 SYSTEM			Modity
swap centos-swap	6396 MiB >	Device Type:	Volume Group
		LVM The Encrypt	centos (0 B free) 🔻
		File System:	Modify
		Label:	Name:
			swap
			Update Settings
+ - C		Note: 7 be app	The settings you make on this screen will n olied until you click on the main meru's 'Beg Installation' butto
AVAILABLE SPACE TOTAL SPACE 992.5 KiB 27.26 GiB			
1 storage device selected			Reset

Completing
InstallationAlong the way, you will be asked for an administrator ("root") password
and another user. We suggest naming the user "oracle" and making that
user an administrator as well (there is a checkbox). Then let the installation
complete.

Downloading and Installing Oracle

Step 1: Creating an OTN Account

Introduction This section guides you through the sub-steps to create your own Oracle Technology Network (OTN) account. Before you can download Oracle you must create and login to an Oracle Technology Network account.

Log On toGo to http://www.oracle.com to log onto the Oracle Technology Network. Oracle isOTNregularly updates their web site, so what you see may be different than the following.



Click on the "Oracle Technology Network" tab at the top or just enter http://www.oracle.com/technology into your browser and you will see something like this:



Click on "Sign In/Register for Account" in the top bar. You should see something like this:

Ele Edt Back Address Favorit Co Address Favorit Co Address Co Address Favorit Co Address Co Address Radu	ign On - Login - Microsoft Internet Explorer Yew Favortes Iools Help \odot \sim \sim \sim \sim \sim \sim \sim \sim Search \swarrow Favortes \odot \sim	CLE COM TECHNOLOGY NETWORK PARTNERS STORE SUPPORT
 Web BU BU BU My Y Yaho Fidel Cole Google cars MSCI Writ 	Sign In Enter your Single Sign-On user name and password. Username Password Lost your password?	Why Sign In? Sign in to access premium content and advanced functions. • Manage subscriptions and newsletters. • Access downloads and documentation. • Use applications from anywhere, anytime. <u>Create your Oracle account now.</u>
⇔ Nort	Copyright © 2006, Oracle. All rights reserved.	About Oracle Contact Us RSS 100 Site Maps Legal Notices and Terms for Use Privacy Statement Powered by Oracle Application Server Portal

If you already have an Oracle account, enter your new username and password, and then click the "Go" button to continue.

Sign Up For
your OracleIf you don't already have an Oracle account, click on "Create your Oracle
account now" at the bottom of the right box. You should see something
like the following:

Create a new account - Mozilla Firefox	
<u>File Edit View History Bookmarks Iools Help</u>	
C X 🏠 Coogle 🖉	1
Single Sign On - Login × Create a new account × +	-
ORACLE	
Register on Oracle.com	
Are you a new user? E-mail Password Confirm Password Passwords must be alphanumeric, a minimum of 8 characters, and should include both lower and upper case letters.	
Confirm Copyright © 2010, Oracle. All rights reserved. Account Help Legal Notices and Terms of Use Privacy Statement	
Done	

- Type in your email address and a password for your new OTN account.
- Click *Confirm*. Note that Oracle uses the portion of your email address to the left of the "@" sign as your OTN user name. If the site complains that the user name is already taken, you will need to use another email address, or create a new one. It is easy to create a new email account at sites like yahoo.com. I used such a Yahoo email address below.

Secreate a new account - Mozilla Firefox	
Elle Edit View Higtory Bookmarks Iools Help	0
<	Q
🕒 Single Sign On - Login 🛛 🕞 Create a new account 🗳	-
Register on Oracle.com	
Are you a new user?	
E-mail BUOTN@yahoo.com Password Confirm Password Password should be 6 - 8 alpha-numeric characters You will be asked to sign in after you create your account	
Confirm Copyright © 2008, Oracle. All rights reserved. Contact Us Legal Notices and Terms of Use Priv	vacy Statement
Done	😫

You will then be presented with a long form asking for your name, address, etc. Complete the form and click "continue." You will find yourself logged into the OTN. Click on the "Downloads" tab to get to the Oracle database downloads.



If you look in the upper left hand corner you should see your first name and "Sign Out", which indicates that you are logged onto OTN.

Step 2: Downloading Oracle

Introduction The following instructions guide you through the sub-steps to download the Oracle zip file appropriate for your operating system.

Downloading the Setup File On the database downloads page for Oracle 12, there will be a radio button for accepting the OTN license agreement. Even though it may seem selected already, click it again. It should show you a 'Thank you' message as in the following figure. Click on the "Linux x86-64" link.

	Menu C	2	よ Sign In 🗸	Cor
acle Technology Network / I	Database / Database / Downloads			
Database	Overview Downloads Documentation	Learn More Commu	nity	
Database In-Memory				
Multitenant	Oracle Database Software D	ownloade		
More Key Features	Oracle Database Software D	ownioaus		
Application Development				
Big Data Appliance				
loud Database Services	Thank you for accepting the OTN License Age	ement: you may now d	ownload this software	
rivate Database Cloud	mank you for decepting the of the Electroc Agree	sement, you may now u	ownioud this soltware.	
ata Warehousing & Big Data				
atabase Appliance	Oracle Database 12c Release	se 2		
xadata Database Machine				
ligh Availability				
Manageability	(12.2.0.1.0) - Standard Edition 2 and En	terprise Edition		
ligrations	Microsoft Windows x64 (64-bit)	File 1 (2.8 GB) Se	e All	
ecurity	Linux x86-64 Linux x86-64	File 1 (3.2 GB) Se	e All	
Instructured Data	Oracle Solaris (SPARC systems, 64-bit)	File 1 (3.1 GB) Se	e All	
Ingrades	 HP-UX Itanium 	File 1 (3.7 GB) Se	e All	
Vindows	AIX (PPC64)	File 1 (3.1 GB) Se	e All	
Database Technology Index	Linux on System z (64-bit)	File 1 (2.5 GB) Se	e All	
- interest in the second s				

It will then begin downloading the file. If you are not already logged into your Oracle account, it will first ask you to login before downloading the file.

Working with
the Zip FileCreate a directory for the downloaded file, and download the file into that directory. Use
the zipping program of choice to unzip the file.

Step 3: Installing Oracle

Create Oracle
DirectoriesLog into Linux as the "oracle" user you created earlier. You will need to create two
directories for the installation. We suggest you create these in the root directory. For
this, you need to use your administrative privileges, but then you must make sure the
directories are owned by the "oracle" user.
Create the following directories:
/o12c_linux - for "Oracle base"

• /oralnventory - for "Inventory Directory"

Start theOpen a terminal window and change the directory to where you unzipped your OracleInstallerinstallation zip file. From that directory run the command:

./runInstaller

The installer will emit a few informational messages, then start up a graphical installer. Oracle went for many years without a graphical installer, but at present the GUI based installation is preferable. The installer may still be workable in character "terminal" mode, but at present it's more straightforward to use the GUI installer.

DatabaseFollow along with the installation wizard, and when asked, select the Enterprise edition,Optionsand choose to create a database. Pay special attention to the screen below when it
appears:

	Oracle Database 120	Release 2 Installer - Step 4	of 8 -	×
Typical Install Configurat	ion	ž		12 ^c
Configure Security Updates Installation Option System Class Prerequisite Checks Summary Install Product Finish	Perform full database ins Oracle base: Software location: Database file location: Database gdition: Character set: OSDBA group: Global database name: Password: Create as Contajner d Pluggable database r Messages:	tallation with basic configuration /o12c_linux/product/12.2.0/dbhor o12c_linux/oradata Enterprise Edition (7.5GB) Unicode (AL32UTF8) oracle o12clinux confirmatabase name: orclpdb	MAKE SURE THIS IS UNCHECKED!	Browse Browse Browse
Help	^a recommended standar	ds. < <u>B</u> ac	k Next > Install	Cancel

Fill out the fields as listed in the screenshot above. *Make double sure to uncheck the "Create as Container database" option as otherwise creating users will be problematic for you when you start using the database.* You can enter a different identifier for the global database name if you would like, but make sure to remember what you enter.

Completing Installation The installer will go through various actions that it performs, and some "fixup steps" for you to perform. It will almost always tell you to run at least one fixup step to alter the Linux operating system configuration, generally to increase allocations of operating systems resources to support Oracle. Run the fixup exactly as the installer instructs you, then return to the installer and it will re-check. If there are different problems, run the fixup step again.

> Along the way, you will be asked to provide a password for the Oracle privileged account as well. *Make sure to remember what you enter for this, so you can use your copy of Oracle after it's installed.*

	If a "fixup" problem report repeats, the system needs to be rebooted to activate the changed settings so that the installer can see they have been corrected. Exit the installer (it won't hurt anything). Then restart the system by clicking the icon in the way up right corner, and select restart.
	When the restart is complete, log in as Oracle again and return to the installer and run it again. If the installer doesn't run to completion, you will need to consult your facilitator, or Oracle's installation docs which are available on the web site.
Post Installation Setup	After your Oracle is installed, you will want to add the following lines to your .bashrc file in your home directory.
	<pre>export ORACLE_BASE=/o12c_linux export ORACLE_HOME=\$ORACLE_BASE/product/12.2.0/dbhome_1 export ORACLE_SID=your_database_name . \$ORACLE_HOME/bin/oraenv</pre>
	This sets up your environment - especially the PATH and LIBPATH variables - to run sqlplus and other Oracle binaries as needed. Make sure you put in your database name as you entered it in the installation. If your top-level "based" directory is different from our recommended "/o12c_linux" then change that in the same way.
	If you do not have a text editor of choice, gedit is an easy-to-use graphical text editor similar to Notepad on Windows, which you can use to edit your .bashrc file. To access it to edit the .bashrc file, simply type the following command:
	gedit .bashrc &
Verifying your Installation	You've made it this far. Great! Now you need to verify your installation. Open a terminal, and change directory to your "base" directory and navigate to subdirectories "product" then "12.2.0" then "dbhome_1" and "bin", then run the following command: ./sqlplus / as sysdba
	You should be connected successfully to the database. You may try a query to verify this.

Installing the Oracle SQL Developer Client

Step 1: Downloading Oracle SQL Developer

Introduction With the database installed, you now need to download and use a client that is capable of connecting to the database. Modern clients are graphical and have many features to enhance productivity. If you already have a working copy of a SQL client you prefer, you do not need to complete this section. Simply setup a connection to your installed database and continue with the next section. Otherwise, it is recommended that you install the free Oracle SQL Developer client. This section contains step-by-step instructions for downloading and using Oracle SQL Developer.



On Oracle.com, click on the Downloads/SQL Developer link:

Oracle SQL Developer

Downloading

This will take you to a page of Oracle SQL Developer downloads for different platforms and different Java configurations. Before downloading, you must first accept the license agreement. Then click on "Download" link for the "Linux RPM" option.



You will then be able to save the RPM file to a location of your choosing.

Installing SQLAfter the RPM is downloaded, click the "Installation Notes" illustrated in the screenshot
above and follow the instructions for installing the RPM. That screen looks like the below
as of the time of writing, but the instructions may change over time.

Overview Downloads	Documentation	Community	Learn More	
RPM for	Linux Installatio	on Notes		
This download does r	not include the JDK. Ye	ou can connect t	o and use any J	IDK 1.8 or above.
To install and run:				
 Ensure you have rpm -Uhv sqldeve cd sqldeveloper (g ./sqldeveloper.sh You will be promp SQL Developer w 	a JDK installed, if not, loper-(<i>build number</i>) go to sqldeveloper fold (run sqldeveloper.sh f ited to enter a jdk path ill automatically launcl	download here -1.noarch.rpm (ii der) ile) i. (ie usr/java/jdk h once jdk locatio	nstall the packa 1.8.0_25) on is provided	ge)

Step 2: Launching Oracle SQL Developer

LaunchTo launch Oracle SQL Developer, simply open a terminal, navigate into the newly createdOracle SQL"sqldeveloper" directory, and execute "./sqldeveloper". You may need to choose the
directory to your Java path, and then SQL Developer will launch.

oracle SQL Developer				- 🗆 X
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>N</u> avigate <u>R</u> un Tea ™ ▷ :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	a <u>m T</u> ools <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	,		
Connections Connections Connections Connections Could Connections	× 🗆 🔇 s	tart Page × ORACL SOL DEVELOP	ER Get Started	Commu
		Overview Video What's New	Featured Tutorials Optimizer Access Paths	Featured Online Der Database Copy
Reports	× =	Release Notes	SQL Tuning Advisor	Reporting Featur
Image: Construction of the second		Documentation SQL Developer on OTN	Working with Tuning Utilities All Online Tutorials	Oracle Data Pum
		✓ Show on Startup		Copyright © 2005, 2015, Orade an
	<(·		

Step 3: Connecting to Your Database

Introduction In any SQL client, we must first establish a connection to the database before typing our SQL commands. A connection opens a communication pathway between the client and the database. In Oracle SQL Developer, the term "connection" is overloaded to indicate both inactive and active communication pathways, as well as all of the configuration information necessary to connect again and again to the same database.

Connecting
as the SystemWe first need to connect to the database as the "system" user, so that we can create our
own user to complete the assignments. To start, right click on the Connections category,
then select "New Connection..." from the context menu.



Oracle SQL Developer will launch the New Connection dialog, which requests configuration information about this new connection.

🚯 New / Select Data	base Connection		×			
Connection Name	Connection Details	Connection Name				
		<u>U</u> sername				
		Password				
		Save Password				
	Oracle Access					
		Connection Type	Basic Role default			
		Hostn <u>a</u> me	localhost			
		Po <u>r</u> t	1521			
		O SID	xe			
		○ Service name				
		OS Authentic	ation 🗌 Kerberos Authentication 🗌 Proxy Connection			
Status :						
Help		Save	<u>Cl</u> ear <u>T</u> est Connect Cancel			

You will need to modify the following fields – Connection Name, Username, and Password, and SID. The Connection Name is just an identifier that you are giving your connection, so that you may identify it in the future. You can type anything you want that is memorable. We will use the name "system" because this connection is for the system user. The username is "system". The password is whatever you chose your password to be during the Oracle installation process. The SID will be whatever SID you chose during installation. If you followed the defaults in this installation guide, you would have selected "o12clinux" as your SID. The screen will look similar to the following:

New / Select Database Connection					×			
Connection Name Connection Details	Connection Name Username Password Save Password Oracle Connection Typ Hostname Port © SID	system system rd Q C e Basic localhost 1521 xe	Connection Color	ault 💌				
Service name OS Authentication Advanced Status : Help Save Clear Test Connect Cancel								

Click the <u>Test</u> button to ensure that you are able to connect. If you are able to connect, it will state "Status: Success" in the lower left-hand part of the dialog. If there is an issue, it will display the issue in the place of the success status. You will need to fix any issues issue before proceeding to connect.

Now simply click the <u>Connect</u> button to establish the connection. When you do so, Oracle SQL Developer will open up a blank SQL worksheet.



In this SQL worksheet, you can type commands, execute them, and see the results.

Congratulations! You have now successfully launched Oracle SQL Developer and established a connection to your database.

Creating a Database User to Complete Your Assignments

Step 1: Creating Your Own User

Create the The SYSTEM account that we are now logged in under is the initial DBA account, and it has so many privileges that it is risky for routine use. We will next create an ordinary user of the sort that we will use for this class. I will call this user "student", but you can substitute any name. Choose a password that you can remember. Just type in the following:

CREATE USER student IDENTIFIED BY studentpassword DEFAULT TABLESPACE USERS TEMPORARY TABLESPACE TEMP;

This SQL command creates user "student" with password "studentpassword" and sets up two important defaults for student's account. Note the semicolon at the end. Upper case is conventional for SQL keywords in the Oracle community. When you have typed this command, it will look like this:



We now need to execute this command for it to take effect in the database. Click the

icon to do so. When executed, the results of the command – the fact that the user is created – should display in a pane below the command.



Give the UserNext we will give user "student" the privilege to connect to the database and the
privilege to create database resources. Type and executePrivileges

GRANT CONNECT, RESOURCE TO student; ALTER USER student QUOTA UNLIMITED ON USERS;

Again, notice the semicolon at the end. Your screen should now look about like this:



The new user is now created!

Step 2: Connecting with Your New User

Disconnect
the SystemWe can use this new user to complete our assignments without concerning ourselves
with accidentally damaging the database. So that we are sure not to use the "system"
any longer, let us close the connection to "system" by right clicking on the "system"
connection, and choosing "Disconnect" from the context menu.



This will terminate the system connection, but will not close the SQL command window. You can close the existing SQL command window by clicking the x icon.

Connect as
Your New
UserNext we will setup a new connection to your new user by following similar steps to
setting up a connection to the system user. Right click the "Connections" category,
choose "New Connection..." from the context menu, and fill in the appropriate
information for that connection.

onnection Name	Connection Details	Connection Name	student	
		<u>U</u> sername	student	
		Password	•••••	
		Sa <u>v</u> e Passwor	d 🔀 Connection Color	
Oracle				
		Connection Type	e Basic 💌 Role default 💌	
		Hostn <u>a</u> me	localhost	
		Po <u>r</u> t	1521	
			xe	
		○ S <u>e</u> rvice name		
		OS Authenti	cation Kerberos Authentication Advanced	

Remember to put in the new username and password instead of the system username and pasword. After inputting the information, click the Connect. A SQL worksheet for the new user will open up.

Cracle SQL Developer : student	The second second	- • ×
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>N</u> avigate <u>R</u> un	Versi <u>o</u> ning <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	
🕒 🖶 🗐 i 🍠 (** i 🔏 🗐 🛍	🔾 - 🔘 - 🎘 -	ask Tor
Connections × Reports ×	Start Page × Restudent ×	
🕂 🕂 🖓 🕇 🔁	🕨 📃 🎘 🕲 🔍 I 🐼 🕵 I 🏦 🍇 🥔 🕤 I	🗐 student 🕶
Connections	Worksheet Query Builder	
turent turent turent t		
1		
Connections	Line 1 Column 1 Insert	Windows: CR/LF Editing

You are now connected to Oracle as an ordinary user, and you can complete your classwork, or even just experiment. If you want to create another user, just connect as "system", and do what we did to create user "student". Have fun!

Congratulations! You are ready to work in Oracle!

Appendix A: I Forgot My Password

If you forget your password, do not panic, because you can log in a different way and change your password. Your access to the computer onto which you installed Oracle means that you are able to login to Oracle as the SYS user without a password. Your privileges are akin to a master DBA in a production environment. Because you typically install and use your own database locally in this course, security is not usually an issue for your student database. For class databases it is recommended to use an easily memorized password.

Open a command line window, then run this command (you will need to change to the bin directory of your Oracle install if this is not already in your path):

sqlplus / as sysdba

SQLPlus should be launched in the command line interface, connected to Oracle as SYSDBA. You can then change the SYSTEM password with the command:

ALTER USER SYSTEM IDENTIFIED BY "new password";

Replace "new password" with a password that you wish to give to the SYSTEM user. Put the password in double-quotes as shown. Double-quotes are needed for putting mixed-case, spaces or special characters into passwords (or into names of users, tables, and other database objects). Oracle passwords are case-sensitive.

Clearly, in a production environment, the password would be carefully chosen to be resistant to attacks, and the password would be carefully protected. However, for a class installation choose something memorable, and write it down or store it on your computer. After you have changed the SYSTEM password to something that you know, you can connect as SYSTEM, and do anything that you wish, including changing passwords of ordinary Oracle users.

The "sqlplus / as sysdba" command works like this when the current user is the Linux owner of the Oracle binaries and data files, which is how you setup the "oracle" user. Oracle treats the operating system owner as "sys". In production systems, the "oracle" user would ordinarily be a no-login user. However, for a class database, security is not a concern, and leaving things as they are makes Oracle access and recovery easier.